
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

Agenda 
 

Monday 25 April 2022  
6.30 pm 

Online - Virtual Meeting 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Administration: Opposition: 

Councillor Natalia Perez (Chair) 
Councillor Fiona Smith 
 

Councillor Dominic Stanton 

 
 
 
 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Charles Francis 

Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 07776 672945 
 E-mail: Charles.Francis@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Public Notice 
 

Members of the press and public are welcome to attend at the YouTube link below:  
 
Speaking at Licensing meetings is restricted to those who have submitted a 
representation and registered to speak.  
 
THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD REMOTELY It will be streamed via YouTube on:  
https://youtu.be/dspNvklRo20 
 

Date Issued: 11 April 2022 

mailto:Charles.Francis@lbhf.gov.uk
https://youtu.be/dspNvklRo20


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee Agenda 
25 April 2022 

 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, 
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or 
any other significant interest which they consider should be declared in 
the public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a 
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the 
nature of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that 
item or as soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary 
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter. The Councillor 
must then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is 
discussed and any vote taken.  
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and 
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should 
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. 
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also 
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation 
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may 
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest. 
 
Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a 
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Standards 
Committee. 
 

 

3.   BLOOM, 399 FULHAM PALACE ROAD, LONDON SW6 6TA 
 

3 - 51 



3 
 

Contents         Page 
  
 
1. THE APPLICATION       4 

1.1. Current Hours of Operation     4 

1.2. Application Requested       5 

1.3. Applicants Operating Schedule     5    

2. BACKGROUND        5  

3. CONSULTATION        5  

3.1      Relevant Representations      6 

4. OTHER INFORMATION       6  

4.1  Enforcement History      6 

4.2      Temporary Event Notices (“TENs”)    6  

5.  POLICY CONSIDERATIONS     6-8 

6.        DETERMINATION       8-9 

 

APPENDICES  

Copy of current licence and plan                                                        10-21 
 
Copy of full variation application and further comments                      22-43  
 
Map showing location of premises and neighbouring premises .......... 44-45  
 
Copy of representation from Cllr Alford Adronie....................................... 46  
 
Copy of representation from local resident .............................................. 47  
 
Comments from the Health and Safety Authority ................................ 48-49 
 
List of Temporary Event Notices in the past 12 months ...................... 50-51 
 
 
  

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



4 
 

1. THE APPLICATION 
 

On the 03 March 2022, Gardening Club Fulham Limited (“the applicant”) submitted 
an application to vary the premises licence in respect of premises known as Bloom, 
located at 399 Fulham Palace Road, London SW6 6TA.  
 

1.1 Current Hours of Operation  

 

The premises currently benefit from a premises licence. The current premises licence 

permits the following: 

 

Performance of Live Music -Indoors Only 

Monday to Sunday 10:00 - 22:00 

 

Playing of Recorded Music -Both Indoors and Outdoors 

Monday to Sunday 08:00 - 23:00 

 

Provision of Late Night Refreshment -Both Indoors and Outdoors 

Monday 23:00 - 00:00 

Tuesday 23:00 - 00:00 

Wednesday 23:00 - 00:00 

Thursday 23:00 - 00:00 

Friday 23:00 - 00:30 

Saturday 23:00 - 00:30 

Sunday 23:00 - 00:00 

 

Sale of Alcohol – Both On and Off the Premises  

Monday 09:00 - 23:30 

Tuesday 09:00 - 23:30 

Wednesday 09:00 - 23:30 

Thursday 09:00 - 23:30 

Friday 09:00 - 00:00 

Saturday 09:00 - 00:00 

Sunday 09:00 - 23:30 

 

The opening hours of the premises 

Monday 07:30 - 00:00 

Tuesday 07:30 - 00:00 

Wednesday 07:30 - 00:00 

Thursday 07:30 - 00:00 

Friday 07:30 - 00:30 

Saturday 07:30 - 00:30 

Sunday 07:30 - 00:00 

 

A copy of the current premises licence and plan can be seen on pages 10-21 of this 

report. 

 

Page 4



5 
 

1.2 Application Requested  
 

The applicant has applied to vary the premises licence to extend the time for live 

music. The proposed days and times are as follows:  

 

Performance of Live Music -Indoors Only 

Monday to Wednesday 10:00 - 23:00 

Thursday to Saturday 10:00 - 23:30 

Sunday 10:00 - 22:00 

 

No other changes to the permitted hours, activities or conditions are sought or 

implied. 

 

A copy of the application form and further comments from the applicant can be seen 

on pages 22-43 of this report. 

 

1.3 Applicants Operating Schedule   
 
The applicant has proposed a number of steps to promote the four licensing 

objectives if the application is granted. A copy of these steps can be seen on pages 

38-39 of this report.  

 

On 05 April 2022, following correspondence received from Health and Safety, the 
review of Public Safety element has been completed for this premises with no issues 
raised. A copy of this relevant correspondence can be seen on pages 48-49 of this 
report. 
 
 
2.  BACKGROUND 

 
The main access to the premise’s unit is located on Fulham Palace Road. There is a 
mixture of both residential and commercial premises within the area. A map showing 
the location of the premises and neighbouring licensed premises can be seen on 
pages 44-45 of this report.  
 
There are several options for transport away from the area including buses and taxis 
which run from in and around the Fulham Palace Road area. Putney Bridge tube 
station is a 11-minute walk away and Parsons Green tube station is a 15-minute walk 
away. 
 
 
3.   CONSULTATION 
 
A public notice was displayed at the premises for 28 days. The application was 
advertised in a local circular and all statutory consultees were notified as required by 
the Regulations. The Council has served written notice of hearing upon the applicant 
and all those parties that have made representations in respect of the application.  
 
 
 

Page 5



6 
 

3.1.  Relevant Representations 
 
The licensing section received one representation from Cllr Alford Adronie objecting 
to the licence variation application. A copy of this representation can be seen on 
page 46 of this report.  
 
The licensing section received one representation from a local resident objecting to 
the licence variation application. A copy of this representation can be seen on page 
47 of this report.  
 
 
4. OTHER INFORMATION 
 
4.1 Enforcement History 
 
There have not been any warnings, simple cautions or prosecutions given in respect of the 
premises during the past three years. 
 
4.2 Temporary Event Notices (“TENs”)  
 
A number of TENs have been submitted in respect of this premises in the past twelve 
months. A list of these TENs can be seen on pages 50-51 of this report.  
 
 
5. POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
5.1 Section 5.1 page 12 of the Statement of Licensing Policy (“SLP”) states that 
where   there is a relevant representation, the Licensing Authority will consider each 
particular case on its merits having regard in particular to the following matters:  

 

 Whether the licensed activities are likely to have an adverse impact 
especially on local residents and, if there is potential to have an adverse 
impact, what, if any, appropriate measures will be put in place to prevent it;  

 Whether there will be a substantial increase in the cumulative adverse 
impact from these or similar activities, on an adjacent residential area; 

 Whether there is a suitable level of public transport accessibility to and 
from the premises at the appropriate times;  

 Whether the activity will be likely to lead to a harmful and unmanageable 
increase in car parking demand in surrounding residential streets suffering 
high levels of parking stress or on roads forming part of the Strategic 
London Road Network or the London Bus Priority Network leading to a 
negative impact on the Licensing Objectives relating to the prevention of 
crime, disorder and nuisance; and 

 Whether there have been any representations made by Responsible 
Authorities, or other relevant agency or representative. 

 
5.2 Section 8.1 page 15 of the SLP states that the Licensing Authority will require 
applicants to detail in their operating schedule the steps proposed to ensure the 
deterrence and prevention of crime and disorder on, and in the vicinity of, the 
premises, having regard to their location, character, condition, the nature and extent 
of the proposed use and the persons likely to use the premises. 
 

Page 6



7 
 

5.3 Section 8.10 page 16 of the SLP states that it is important that staff working at 
off licences are suitably trained and receive appropriate refresher training in their 
responsibilities under the Act and can discharge their duties in full compliance with 
the licence conditions and requirements of the Act. This includes the ability to 
competently check a customer’s age with acceptable forms of identification where 
necessary. The Licensing Authority will particularly consider the following matters 
where they are material to the individual application:  

 The likelihood of any violence, public order or policing problem if the licence 
is granted;  

 The measures taken to control admission to the premises, and to take 
reasonable steps to prevent the occurrence of crime and disorder and public 
nuisance immediately outside the premises, where and to the extent that 
these matters are within their control.  

 Past conduct and prior history of complaints against the premises;  

 Whether a dispersal policy has been prepared to minimise the potential for 
disorder as customers leave the premises; and  

 Any relevant representations. 
 
5.4 Section 9.6 page 18 of the SLP states that the Licensing Authority will, where 
appropriate, attach conditions to a licence to ensure public safety, dealing with, but 
not limited to. the following:  

 The number of people on the premises to ensure it is appropriate having 
regard to the activities taking place and reliable ways of counting the number;  

 The steps taken to manage the risk from glass, the use of bottle bins, glass 
collectors and door supervisors to prevent glass being taken off the 
premises;  

 The use of door supervisors to manage the entrance and exit from the 
premises and to protect public safety as customers leave the premises; and 

 The provision of air conditioning and ventilation.  
 
5.5 Section 10.3 page 19 and 20 of the SLP states that the Licensing Authority will 
particularly consider the following matters where they are material to the individual 
application:  
• One of the most common complaints the Licensing Authority receive is about 
nuisance caused by customers as they leave licensed premises at night. The 
Licensing Authority recommends that primarily alcohol led premises such as 
nightclubs and pubs, located close to any residential premises, implement a dispersal 
policy at their venue. All relevant staff should be trained on any policy, and all 
reasonable steps should be taken to ensure it is fully implemented and adhered to at 
all times.  
• The proximity of residential accommodation;  
• The type of use proposed, including the likely numbers of customers, proposed 
hours of operation and the frequency of activity;  
• The steps taken or proposed to be taken by the applicant to prevent noise and 
vibration escaping from the premises, including music, noise from ventilation 
equipment, and human voices. Such measures may include the installation of 
soundproofing, air conditioning, acoustic lobbies and sound limitation devices;  
• The steps taken or proposed to be taken by the applicant to prevent disturbance by 
customers arriving at or leaving the premises. This will usually be of greater 
importance late at night and/or in the early hours of the morning. However nuisance 
can arise at any time of the day or night so the Licensing Authority will consider 

Page 7



8 
 

representations from Responsible Authorities and/or Interested Parties relating to 
potential nuisance from any activity at all times dependant on the merits of the 
application/steps taken or proposed to prevent nuisance.  
• Limiting the number of people permitted to use a garden/other open-air areas, 
including those for the use of smoking, at any one time.  
• Restricting the use of a garden/other open-air areas, including those for the use of 
smoking, after a particular time e.g. 11:00pm (or such earlier time as may be 
considered appropriate).  
• The steps taken or proposed to be taken by the applicant to prevent queuing (either 
by pedestrian or vehicular traffic). If some queuing is inevitable then queues should 
be diverted away from neighbouring premises or be otherwise managed to prevent 
disturbance or obstruction;  
• The steps taken or proposed to be taken by the applicant to ensure staff leave the 
premises quietly;  
• The arrangements made or proposed for parking by patrons, and the effect of 
parking by patrons on local residents;  
• The provision for public transport in the locality (including taxis and private hire 
vehicles) for patrons;  
• The level of likely disturbance from associated vehicular and pedestrian movement 
to and from the premises;   
• The delivery and collection areas and delivery/collection times;  
• The siting of external lighting, including security lighting that is installed 
inappropriately;  
• The arrangements for refuse disposal, storage and the prevention/tidying of litter 
(including fly posters and illegal placards);  
• The history of previous nuisance complaints proved against the premises, 
particularly where statutory notices have been served on the present licence holder;  
• The history of the applicant in controlling anti-social behaviour and preventing 
nuisance;  
• The generation of odour, e.g. from the preparation of food; 
• Any other relevant activity likely to give rise to nuisance;  
• Any representations made by the Police, or other relevant agency or representative; 
 
 
6. DETERMINATION 

 
6.1 In determining this application, the Committee must have regard to the 
representations and take such of the following steps as it considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. The steps are: 
 
(a) Grant the application in full  
(b) Grant the application in part – modifying the proposed hours, activities or 
conditions.  
(c) Reject the application 
 
It is the Council’s duty under the Licensing Act 2003 (“The Act”) to determine 
applications with a view to promoting the four licensing objectives; Prevention of 
Crime and Disorder, Public Safety, Prevention of Public Nuisance and the Protection 
of Children from Harm. 
 
In reaching a decision the Council shall consider the details of any relevant 
representations received; the applicant’s Operating Schedule; the Council’s adopted 

Page 8



9 
 

Statement of Licensing Policy and the guidance issued by the Secretary of State 
under section 182 of the Act. 
 
If the Committee is minded to grant the application conditions may be attached to the 
licence to alleviate the concerns raised through the representations. 
 

Page 9



 

Licensing Act 2003  

Premises Licence 
 

 

     Page 1 of 11 

 

Premises Licence Number:  2020/00507/LAPR 

 

Part 1 – Premises details 
 

Postal address of premises, or if none, OS map reference or description of 

the premises 

 

Bloom 

399 Fulham Palace Road 
 

Post town:  London Post code:  SW6 6TA 

Telephone:  020 7371 0662 

 

Where the licence is time limited the dates: 

 

Not Applicable 

 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence: 
 

Performance of Live Music -Indoors Only  
Playing of Recorded Music -Both Indoors and Outdoors   

Provision of Late Night Refreshment -Both Indoors and Outdoors   

Sale of Alcohol On and Off the Premises -Both Indoors and Outdoors   

 

The licence authorises the carrying out of the following licensable activities 

on the days and at the times specified below: 

 

Performance of Live Music  -Indoors Only    

Monday to Sunday 10:00 - 22:00   

 

Playing of Recorded Music  -Both Indoors and Outdoors    

Monday to Sunday 08:00 - 23:00   

 
Provision of Late Night Refreshment  -Both Indoors and Outdoors    

Monday 23:00 - 00:00   

Tuesday 23:00 - 00:00   

Wednesday 23:00 - 00:00   

Thursday 23:00 - 00:00   

Friday 23:00 - 00:30   

Saturday 23:00 - 00:30   

Sunday 23:00 - 00:00   

 

Page 10



 

 

27.08.20202017/01370/LAPR Page 2 of 11 

Sale of Alcohol On and Off the Premises  -Both Indoors and Outdoors    

Monday 09:00 - 23:30   

Tuesday 09:00 - 23:30   

Wednesday 09:00 - 23:30   

Thursday 09:00 - 23:30   

Friday 09:00 - 00:00   

Saturday 09:00 - 00:00   

Sunday 09:00 - 23:30   
 

 

The opening hours of the premises: 
 

Monday  07:30 - 00:00   

Tuesday  07:30 - 00:00   

Wednesday 07:30 - 00:00   

Thursday  07:30 - 00:00   

Friday  07:30 - 00:30   

Saturday  07:30 - 00:30   

Sunday  07:30 - 00:00 

 

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on 

and/or off supplies: 

 
Both On and Off the Premises 

 

 

Part 2 

 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) 

of holder of premises licence: 

 

Gardening Club Fulham Limited 
399 Fulham Palace Road 

London 

SW6 6TA 

 

Telephone:  020 7371 0662 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity 

number (where applicable): 

 
10731121  

 

Page 11



 

 

27.08.20202017/01370/LAPR Page 3 of 11 

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor 

where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol: 

 

Mr Nigel Duncan  

10 Marville Road 

London 

SW6 7BD 

   

Licensing Authority: Hammersmith And Fulham Council  

Personal Licence Number: 2015/01584/LAPER  

 

 

 

Annex 1 – Mandatory Conditions 

 

1. Mandatory Condition 

(1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. 
 

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 

encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to— 

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or 

supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible 

person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 

 

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a 

manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 

or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less 

in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or 

in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, 

encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness 

in any favourable manner; 

 
(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability). 

 

2. Mandatory Condition 

The responsible person shall ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 

 

3.Mandatory Condition 

Page 12



 

 

27.08.20202017/01370/LAPR Page 4 of 11 

1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an 

age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or 

supply of alcohol. 

 

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the 
age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 

under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce 

on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date 

of birth and either— 

(a) a holographic mark, or 

(b) an ultraviolet feature. 

 

4. Mandatory Condition 

The responsible person must ensure that— 

 
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 

the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in 

advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to 

customers in the following measures— 

(i) beer or cider: ½ pint; 

(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which 

is available to customers on the premises; and 

 

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available. 
 

5.  Mandatory Condition 

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption 

on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.  

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1—  

(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;  

 

(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula—  

   P = D + (D x V) 

where—  

(i)   P is the permitted price,  

(ii)  D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were 
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and  

(iii)  V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the 

value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;  

 

(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a premises licence—  

(i)  the holder of the premises licence,  

(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or  

Page 13



 

 

27.08.20202017/01370/LAPR Page 5 of 11 

(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under 

such a licence;  

 

(d) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 

premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in 
question; and  

 

(e) "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994.  

 

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart 

from this paragraph) not be a whole  number of pennies, the price given by that sub-

paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph 

rounded up to the nearest penny.  

 

4.(1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of 

paragraph 2 on a day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on 
the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value 

added tax.  

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies 

of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on 

the second day.  

 

6. Mandatory Condition 

(1) No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence- 

(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the 

premises licence, or 

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal 

licence or his personal licence is suspended. 

 
(2) Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised 

by a person who holds a personal licence. 

 

 

7. Mandatory Condition 

Where this licence includes a condition that at specified times one or more individuals 

must be at the premises to carry out a security activity, each individual must be 

licensed by the Security Industry Authority, with the following exceptions: 

 

a) premises where the premises licence authorises plays or films 

b) any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of Schedule 2 to the Private 

Security Industry Act 2001 (premises being used exclusively by a club with a club 
premises certificate, under a temporary event notice authorising plays or films or 

under a gaming licence), or 

c) any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of  Schedule 2 to the Private Security 

Industry Act 2001. 

 

Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 

 

8. CCTV covering areas inside and outside of the premises shall be installed and 

Page 14



 

 

27.08.20202017/01370/LAPR Page 6 of 11 

maintained to police recommendations with properly maintained log arrangements. 

All images shall be stored for a minimum of 31 days. 

 

9. CCTV is to comply with Data Protection Act 2018 and is to be working and 

recording correctly when the premises are open to the public. If the CCTV is not 

working then the premise will comply with requests by police, including suspension of 
licensable activity. 

 

10. A staff member from the premises that is conversant with the operation of the 

CCTV system will be on the premises at ALL times that the premises are open to the 

public. This staff member will be able to show police recent data footage with the 

minimum of delay when requested. This data or footage reproduction should be 

almost instantaneous. 

 

11. Appropriate signage shall be displayed in prominent positions, informing 

customers they are being recorded on CCTV. 

 

12. On days when Fulham Football Club are playing at home or on days when a 
Fulham victory parade takes place plastic glasses shall be used for three hours before 

the advertised kick off time until three hours after the match has been completed. 

 

13. On days when Fulham Football Club are playing at home or on days when a 

Fulham victory parade takes place, there shall be a minimum of one personal licence 

holder on duty from three hours before the advertised kick off until three hours after 

the match has been completed. 

 

14. Alcohol shall not be served before 11am on days when Fulham FC plays at home. 

 

15. On days when Fulham Football Club are playing at home or on days when a 

Fulham victory parade takes place the premises will have a minimum of one SIA 

registered door staff, or such other number as agreed with Hammersmith and Fulham 
Police Licensing Unit in writing, on duty for three hours before the advertised kick off 

time until three hours after the match has been completed. At least one SIA door 

staff to be located at the entrance to the terrace when the terrace is open for 

licensable activities. 

 

16. On days when Fulham Football Club are playing at home no away fans shall be 

admitted to the premises from three hours after the match is completed. 

 

17. No music shall be generated within the Premises so as to give rise to nuisance 

within neighbouring dwellings. 

 

18. Clearly legible notices shall be displayed at all exits from the Premises requesting 
patrons to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the Premises and area 

quietly. 

 

19. There shall be no customers in the front, rear, side after 23:00. 

 

20. 30 places for seating shall always be made available inside the premises whilst 

licensable activities are being carried out. 

 

Page 15



 

 

27.08.20202017/01370/LAPR Page 7 of 11 

21. The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 age restricted sales policy and shall 

display appropriate signage advising customers of this policy. 

 

22. All staff shall be trained in the Proof of Age policy and how to identify acceptable 

means of identification. 

 
23. Live music shall not be permitted in the outside space/areas of the premises. 

 

24. Recorded music shall not be permitted outside the premises after 23:00 hours.  

 

25. An electronic noise limiting device shall be installed on the premises and set to 

noise officers' satisfaction so as to ensure that nuisance is not caused in any 

unassociated premises. The device shall be pre-approved by officers before the use 

commences and maintained in good working order throughout the duration of use. 

 

26. If requested by the Noise & Nuisance Team the noise limiter shall be adjusted and 

set to a satisfactory level so that local residents are not disturbed. 

 
27. Any television in the outside area shall be set to background level only. 

 

28. The Licence Holder / Designated Premises Supervisor shall respond promptly and 

positively to any noise complaints from residents. 

 

29. There shall be no admittance or re-admittance to the premises after 23:00 except 

for existing customers who have been outside to smoke.  

 

30. All staff shall be trained in how to identify drunk or drug impaired customers. This 

training shall be repeated at least biannually and written records of the training kept 

and made available to police and authorised officers of the Licensing Authority on 

request 

 
31. All staff responsible for selling alcohol shall receive regular training in the 

Licensing Act 2003 in terms of the licensing objectives, offences committed under the 

Act and conditions of the Premises Licence. Written records of this training shall be 

retained and made available to police and authorised officers of the Licensing 

Authority on request. 

 

Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 

 

 

 

 
Signed:           Date: 13.08.2020 

Authorised Officer  

Page 16



 

 

27.08.20202017/01370/LAPR Page 8 of 11 

Annex 4- Plans: 

 

Please insert plan at page 8 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 
  

Page 17



 

 

27.08.20202017/01370/LAPR Page 9 of 11 

Licensing Act 2003  

Premises Licence 
 

 
Premises Licence Summary 

 

 

Premises Licence Number: 2020/00507/LAPR 

 

Premises details 

 

Postal address of premises, or if none, OS map reference or description of 

the premises 

 

Bloom 

399 Fulham Palace Road 

 

Post town:  London Post code:  SW6 6TA 

Telephone:  020 7371 0662 

 

Where the licence is time limited the dates: 
 

Not Applicable 

 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence: 

 

Performance of Live Music -Indoors Only  

Playing of Recorded Music -Both Indoors and Outdoors   

Provision of Late Night Refreshment -Both Indoors and Outdoors   

Sale of Alcohol On and Off the Premises -Both Indoors and Outdoors   

 

The licence authorises the carrying out of the following licensable activities 

on the days and at the times specified below: 
 

Performance of Live Music  -Indoors Only    

Monday to Sunday 10:00 - 22:00   

 

Playing of Recorded Music  -Both Indoors and Outdoors    

Monday to Sunday 08:00 - 23:00   

 

Provision of Late Night Refreshment  -Both Indoors and Outdoors    

Monday 23:00 - 00:00   

Tuesday 23:00 - 00:00   

Wednesday 23:00 - 00:00   

Thursday 23:00 - 00:00   
Friday 23:00 - 00:30   

Saturday 23:00 - 00:30   

Page 18



 

 

27.08.20202017/01370/LAPR Page 10 of 11 

Sunday 23:00 - 00:00   

 

Sale of Alcohol On and Off the Premises  -Both Indoors and Outdoors    

Monday 09:00 - 23:30   

Tuesday 09:00 - 23:30   

Wednesday 09:00 - 23:30   

Thursday 09:00 - 23:30   

Friday 09:00 - 00:00   

Saturday 09:00 - 00:00   

Sunday 09:00 - 23:30   

 

 

The opening hours of the premises: 

 

Monday07:30 - 00:00   

Tuesday07:30 - 00:00   

Wednesday07:30 - 00:00   

Thursday07:30 - 00:00   

Friday07:30 - 00:30   

Saturday07:30 - 00:30   

Sunday07:30 - 00:00 

 

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on 
and/or off supplies: 

 

Both On and Off the Premises 

 

 

Name, (registered) address, of holder of premises licence: 

 

Gardening Club Fulham Limited 

399 Fulham Palace Road 

London 

SW6 6TA 

 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number 

(where applicable): 

 

10731121 

 

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence 

authorises the supply of alcohol: 

 

Mr Nigel Duncan  

 

 

Page 19



 

 

27.08.20202017/01370/LAPR Page 11 of 11 

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited: 

 

No Restrictions 

 

 

 

Signed:           Date: 13.08.2020 

Authorised Officer      

 

Page 20



Page 21



 

 

Application to vary a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 
 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.  If you are completing 
this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals.  In all cases ensure that your answers are inside 
the boxes and written in black ink.  Use additional sheets if necessary. You may wish to keep a copy of 
the completed form for your records. 
 
 

I/W
e 

      

 
        (Insert name(s) of applicant)  
being the premises licence holder, apply to vary a premises licence under section 34 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below 
 

Premises licence number 2020/00507/LAPR      

 
 
Part 1 – Premises Details 
 

 Gardening club Fulham limited 
 
Bloom 399 FULHAM PALAE ROAD SW66TA 

Post town London Postcode Sw66ta 

 
 

Telephone number at premises (if any) 02073710662 

Non-domestic rateable value of premises £   21250   

 
 
Part 2 – Applicant details 
 

Daytime contact  
telephone number 

07956943326 

E-mail address (optional) nigelduncan38@yahoo.com 

Current postal address if 
different from premises address 

      

Post town       Postcode       

 

Gardening Club Fulham Limited

Page 22

mailto:nigelduncan38@yahoo.com


 

 

 
 
 
Part 3 - Variation 

 
Please tick as appropriate 

Do you want the proposed variation to have effect as soon as possible?         Yes          

 
 

If not, from what date do you want the variation to take effect? 
DD MM YYYY 
 ?? ?? ?? ?? ?? ?? ??  

 
Do you want the proposed variation to have effect in relation to the introduction of the late night levy? 
(Please see guidance note 1)                 No 
  

Please describe briefly the nature of the proposed variation (Please see guidance note  
2) 
 
Increase the finish time for the live music to 2300 or 2330, depending of the day 
      

 
 

If your proposed variation would mean that 5,000 or more people are 
expected to attend the premises at any one time, please state the 
number expected to attend: 

      

 
  

Page 23



 

 

Part 4 Operating Schedule   
 
Please complete those parts of the Operating Schedule below which would be subject to change if this 
application to vary is successful. 
 

Provision of regulated entertainment (Please see guidance note 3) Please tick all that apply 

a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)  

b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)  

c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)  

d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)  

e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)  

f) recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)  

g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)  

h) 
anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)  
(if ticking yes, fill in box H) 

 

 

   

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)   

Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J)  

 
  In all cases complete boxes K, L and M 
 
  

Page 24



 

 

A 
 

Plays  
Standard days and timings 
(please read guidance 
note 8) 

Will the performance of a play take place indoors or 
outdoors or both – please tick (please read 
guidance note 4)   

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5) 
      

            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read guidance 
note 6) 
                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for the 
performance of plays at different times to those listed in the column on the 
left, please list (please read guidance note 7) 
      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 
 
  

Page 25



 

 

B 
 

Films  
Standard days and timings 
(please read guidance 
note 8) 

Will the exhibition of films take place indoors or 
outdoors or both – please tick (please read 
guidance note 4)  

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5) 
      

            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please read 
guidance note 6) 
                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for the 
exhibition of films at different times to those listed in the column on the 
left, please list (please read guidance note 7) 
      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 
 
  

Page 26



 

 

C 
 

Indoor sporting events  
Standard days and timings 
(please read guidance 
note 8) 

Please give further details (please read guidance note 5) 
      

Day Start Finish 

Mon             

            

Tue             State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please read 
guidance note 6) 
                  

Wed             

            

Thur             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for indoor 
sporting events at different times to those listed in the column on the left, 
please list (please read guidance note 7) 
      

            

Fri             

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 
  
  

Page 27



 

 

D 
 

Boxing or wrestling 
entertainments  
Standard days and timings 
(please read guidance 
note 8) 

Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment take place 
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick (please 
read guidance note 4)   

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5) 
      

            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling entertainment 
(please read guidance note 6) 
                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for boxing 
or wrestling entertainment at different times to those listed in the column 
on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7) 
      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 
 
  

Page 28



 

 

E 
 

Live music  
Standard days and timings 
(please read guidance 
note 8) 

Will the performance of live music take place 
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick (please 
read guidance note 4)   

Indoors X 

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 10 23 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5) 
      

            

Tue 10 23 

            

Wed 10 23 State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music (please 
read guidance note 6) 
                  

Thur 10 2330 

            

Fri 10 2330 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for the 
performance of live music at different times to those listed in the column 
on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7) 
      

            

Sat 10 2330 

            

Sun 10 22 

            

 
 
  

Page 29



 

 

F 
 

Recorded music  
Standard days and timings 
(please read guidance 
note 8) 

Will the playing of recorded music take place 
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick (please 
read guidance note 4)   

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5) 
      

            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music (please 
read guidance note 6) 
                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for the 
playing of recorded music at different times to those listed in the column 
on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7) 
      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 
 
  

Page 30



 

 

G 
 

Performances of dance 
Standard days and timings 
(please read guidance 
note 8) 

Will the performance of dance take place 
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick (please 
read guidance note 4)   

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5) 
      

            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance (please 
read guidance note 6) 
                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for the 
performance of dance at different times to those listed in the column 
on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7) 
      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 
 
  

Page 31



 

 

H 
 

Anything of a similar 
description to that falling 
within (e), (f) or (g) 
Standard days and timings 
(please read guidance 
note 8) 

Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be 
providing 
      

Day Start Finish Will this entertainment take place indoors or 
outdoors or both – please tick (please read 
guidance note 4)  

Indoors  

Mon             Outdoors  

            Both  

Tue             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5) 
      

            

Wed             

            

Thur             State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar 
description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)  (please read guidance 
note 6) 
      

            

Fri             

            

Sat 
            

Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for the 
entertainment of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or 
(g) at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please 
list (please read guidance note 7) 
      

            

Sun             

            

 
 
  

Page 32



 

 

 I 
 

Late night refreshment 
Standard days and timings 
(please read guidance 
note 8) 

Will the provision of late night refreshment take 
place indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 
(please read guidance note 4)   

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5) 
      

            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night 
refreshment (please read guidance note 6) 
                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for the 
provision of late night refreshment at different times, to those listed 
in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7) 
      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 
 
  

Page 33



 

 

J 
 

Supply of alcohol 
Standard days and timings 
(please read guidance 
note 8) 

Will the supply of alcohol be for consumption – 
please tick  (please read guidance note 9)   

On the 
premises 

 

Off the 
premises 

 

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please read 
guidance note 6) 
                  

Tue             

            

Wed             

            

Thur             Non-standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for the 
supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the column on 
the left, please list (please read guidance note 7) 
      

            

Fri             

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 
 
 
K 
 

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or matters 
ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children (please 
read guidance note 10). 
      

 
 
 

Page 34



 

 

  

Page 35



 

 

L 
 

Hours premises are 
open to the public 
Standard days and timings 
(please read guidance 
note 8) 

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 6) 
      

Day Start Finish 

Mon             

            

Tue             

            

Wed             

            Non standard timings.  Where you intend the premises to be open to 
the public at different times from those listed in the column on the 
left, please list (please read guidance note 7) 
      

Thur             

            

Fri             

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 
 

Please identify those conditions currently imposed on the licence which you believe could be removed 
as a consequence of the proposed variation you are seeking. 
      

 
 
 

Page 36



 

 

 
 

Please tick as appropriate 

 I have enclosed the premises licence  

 I have enclosed the relevant part of the premises licence x  

 
 
If you have not ticked one of these boxes, please fill in reasons for not including the licence or part of it 
below 
 

Reasons why I have not enclosed the premises licence or relevant part of premises licence. 
      
 

 
 
  

Page 37



 

 

M Describe any additional steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives as a result of 

the proposed variation: 
 
a) General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance note 11) 

For the extra 1/1.5 hours of live music we work with all our neighbours to provide a safe well managed 
service to the community, one in which we can all enjoy in a peaceful experience 

 
 
b) The prevention of crime and disorder 

At present we have zero crime because we are vigilant with all our customers and we are continually 
aware of issues which we deal with immediately and we monitor customers consumption of alcohol 
and actively use challenge 25 

 
 
c) Public safety 

We continue to use challenge 25 to ensure the safe sale  of alcohol.  
We also monitor the safe consumption of alcohol. 
On match days we have door security to manage public safety 

 
 
d) The prevention of public nuisance 

     We work closely with our neighbours so not to cause a nuisance. Close neighbours have my 
personal mobile numbers to try and head off any concerns.  
We actually close our back garden early then required to help support relations with the next door 
neighbours  
Although we are not closing later, we always try and dispurse customers at the end of the night so they 
are not hanging around at the end of the night 
Music is played at a reasonable sound level as to not cause a nuisance 

 
 
e) The protection of children from harm 

Page 38



 

 

   challenge 25 in place.  
Constant supervision of the site at all times 
   

 
 
 
 
Checklist: 

Please tick to indicate agreement 

 I have made or enclosed payment of the fee; or  
I have not made or enclosed payment of the fee because this application has been made in 
relation to the introduction of the late night levy. 

 
 
  

 I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and others 
where applicable. 

 

 I understand that I must now advertise my application.  

 I have enclosed the premises licence or relevant part of it or explanation.  

 I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will be 
rejected.  

 

 
 
IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE 
STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE 
STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.   
 
Part 5 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 12) 
 
Signature of applicant (the current premises licence holder) or applicant’s solicitor or other duly 
authorised agent (please read guidance note 13).  If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state 
in what capacity. 
 
 

Signature Nigelduncan 

Date 3/3/2022 

Capacity Owner 

 
 
Where the premises licence is jointly held, signature of 2nd applicant (the current premises 
licence holder) or 2nd applicant’s solicitor or other authorised agent (please read guidance note 
14).  If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.  
 

Signature  

Page 39



 

 

Date       

Capacity       

 
 
 

Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated with 
this application (please read guidance note 15) 
      

Post town       Post code       

Telephone number (if any)       

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional) 
      

 
 
Notes for Guidance 
 
This application cannot be used to vary the licence so as to extend the period for which the 
licence has effect or to vary substantially the premises to which it relates. If you wish to make 
that type of change to the premises licence, you should make a new premises licence application 
under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
1. You do not have to pay a fee if the only purpose of the variation for which you are applying is to 

avoid becoming liable for the late night levy 
2. Describe the premises. For example, the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any 

other information which could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where your application 
includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place of consumption of these off-
supplies of alcohol, you must include a description of where the place will be and its proximity to the 
premises. 

3. In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:  

• Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided 
that the audience does not exceed 500. 

• Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises 
between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the 
organiser (a) gets consent to the screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; 
and (b) ensures that each such screening abides by age classification ratings. 

• Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on 
any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000.     

• Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment:  no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of 
Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided 
that the audience does not exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports – defined as a contest, 
exhibition or display which combines boxing or wrestling with one or more martial arts – are 
licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an indoor sporting event. 

• Live music: no licence permission is required for: 
o a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any 

premises. 

Page 40



 

 

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises 
authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience 
does not exceed 500. 

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace 
that is not licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not 
exceed 500.  

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church 
hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed 
by a premises licence to sell alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, 
and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance from a person who is responsible 
for the premises. 

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-
residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that 
(a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the 
performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the 
school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital. 

• Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for: 
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises 

authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience 
does not exceed 500. 

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, 
village hall, community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a 
premises licence to sell alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and 
(b) the organiser gets consent for the performance from a person who is responsible for 
the premises. 

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential 
premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the 
audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on 
the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or 
(iii) the health care provider for the hospital. 

 

• Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided 
that the audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance which amounts to adult 
entertainment remains licensable. 

• Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, with no 
limit on audience size for:    
o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where the 

entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the local authority;  
o any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care provider where 

the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care provider;  
o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the entertainment is 

provided by or on behalf of the school proprietor; and 
o any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment) taking place at 

a travelling circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a moveable structure that 
accommodates the audience, and (b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the 
same site for more than 28 consecutive days. 

4. Where taking place in a building or other structure please tick as appropriate (indoors may include a 
tent). 

5. For example, state type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further 
details, for example (but not exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified. 

6. For example, (but not exclusively), where the activity will occur on additional days during the 
summer months. 

7. For example, (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day 
e.g. Christmas Eve. 

8. Please give timings in 24 hour clock (e.g. 16.00) and only give details for the days of the week when 
you intend the premises to be used for the activity. 

Page 41



 

 

9. If you wish people to be able to consume alcohol on the premises, please tick ‘on the premises’. If 
you wish people to be able to purchase alcohol to consume away from the premises, please tick ‘off 
the premises’. If you wish people to be able to do both, please tick ‘both’. 

10. Please give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of 
the premises which may give rise to concern in respect of children regardless of whether you intend 
children to have access to the premises, for example (but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, 
films for restricted age groups or the presence of gaming machines. 

11. Please list here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together. 
12. The application form must be signed. 
13. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they 

have actual authority to do so. 
14. Where there is more than one applicant, each of the applicants or their respective agents must sign 

the application form. 
15. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.  

Page 42



Further Comments from the Applicant 
 
 
From: Nigel Duncan   
Sent: 04 April 2022 15:49 
To: Dimitriou Maria: H&F  
Subject: Re: Objections received - Reference: 2022/00305/LAPR - Premises: Bloom 
399 Fulham Palace Road London SW6 6TA 
 
Having spoken to the neighbours on numerous occasions, we are now undertaking 
full soundproofing of the connecting walls that should prevent and additional sounds 
to these neighbours. 
 
The sound of the live music is kept to the same sound of the recording music which 
can be played upto 12am, which hasn't caused concern upto now and with the 
additional soundproofing we feel that all parties will be better off. 
 
We only have an open Mike once a week and this soundproofing would be of benefit 
for our full 7 days trading and for our Temporary events which can on occasion go 
until after midnight. 
  
I am more than happy to discuss this with any concerned party so we can improve/ 
eradicate any perceived issues 
 
Thanks 
Nigel Duncan 
 
 
 
 
From: Nigel Duncan  
Sent: 04 April 2022 16:08 
To: Dimitriou Maria: H&F  
Subject: Re: Objections received - Reference: 2022/00305/LAPR - Premises: Bloom 
399 Fulham Palace Road London SW6 6TA 
 
I have also contacted the direct neighbour and we are both in agreement that the 
soundproofing would be great for both of us and will resolve the issues. 
 

Page 43



P
age 44



Reference Number Trading As Address Activities Monday to Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday

2021/00818/LAPR Costcutter Express

417 - 419 Fulham Palace 
Road

London SW6 6SX
Sale of Alcohol Off the 

Premises
08:00:00 - 
23:00:00

08:00:00 - 
23:00:00

08:00:00 - 
23:00:00

08:00:00 - 
23:00:00

08:00:00 - 
23:00:00

08:00:00 - 
23:00:00

10:00:00 - 
22:30:00

2017/00770/LAPR
Glasshouse Cafe The 

Palace Gardener

Fulham Palace Garden 
Centre

Bishop's Avenue
London SW6 6EE

Sale of Alcohol On the 
Premises

09:30:00 - 17:30:00

P
age 45



From: Cllr Alford Adronie: H&F   
Sent: 01 April 2022 13:43 
To: Licensing HF: H&F   
Subject: Re: Premises Licence Full Variation | Bloom 399 Fulham Palace Road London SW6 6TA  
 
Good afternoon 
 
I wish to object to the changes to existing license.  Any extra hours and music will cause 
considerable disruption for local residents, 
 
Kind regards 
Adronie Alford 
Councillor for Munster ward 
 
  

Page 46



 

 Comments summary 

Dear Sir/Madam, 
Licensing Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is provided below. 
Comments were submitted at 04/03/2022 12:25 PM from Mr Thomas Quested. 

Application Summary 

Address: 399 Fulham Palace Road London SW6 6TA  

Proposal: Licensing Act - Premises Licence  

Case Officer: Maria Dimitriou  

 
Click for further information 

 

Customer Details 

Name: Mr Thomas Quested 

Email:  

Address: Fulham Palace Road London 

 

Comments Details 

Commenter 
Type: 

Neighbour 

Stance: Customer objects to the Licensing Application 

Reasons for 
comment: 

 

Comments: 04/03/2022 12:25 PM Reason for objection - Under the licensing act 2003- 
Prevention of public nuisance.  
 
We live at Fulham Palace Road, which is directly next to the venue. For the last 2 
years we have had to deal with excessive noise coming from the venue, 
sometimes to the early hours of the morning. I'm sure there are records as to the 
number of times I have had to call noise and nuisance. Their current license is 
already affecting mine and my fiancé's life mentally and to further extend their 
license would be completely devastating to our livelihoods. We both have full time 
jobs, my wife is a teacher and has to get up very early in the morning to get to 
school. To have these late night events will affect our lives even further as we find 
it hard to sleep most nights as it is due to the noise and music coming from the 
venue.  
 
We live in a residential area and to have this license extended would be 
detrimental not only to us but I'm sure the surrounding area.  
 
I plead that this application be rejected on the above grounds and their license be 
reviewed. I cannot put in words the misery this venue has caused us over the 
past two years and to approve this application would cause me to lose faith in the 
council's ability to put the residents of Fulham first.  
 
  

Kind regards  
 

Page 47

https://public-access.lbhf.gov.uk/online-applications/centralDistribution.do?caseType=LicencingApplication&keyVal=R869SLBI19100


From: Christian Shaafiek: H&F   
Sent: 05 April 2022 12:38 
To: Dimitriou Maria: H&F; Overton Adrian: H&F  
Cc: Souster Graham: H&F; Needham Stephanie: H&F 
Subject: FW: Premises Licence Full Variation | Bloom 399 Fulham Palace Road 
London SW6 6TA  
 
Good afternoon all, 
 
The review of Public Safety element has been completed for this premises with no 
issues raised from my side. Nigel has provided me with a satisfactory fixed electrical 
wiring report and a copy of his Fire Risk Assessment. There is no gas on site. 
 
Regards. 
 
Shaafiek Christian 
Environmental Health Practitioner 
Health and Safety 
Hammersmith and Fulham Council 
 
 
 
From: Christian Shaafiek: H&F  
Sent: 28 March 2022 08:18 
To:  
Cc: Dimitriou Maria: H&F 
Subject: Bloom: Review of Public Safety Objectives for premises licensing (Full 
Variation) application  
 
Dear Nigel Duncan, 
 
I write in reference to the premises licensing (Full Variation) application submitted for 
Bloom, 399 Fulham Palace Road, London, SW6 6TA and validated on 04/03/2022. 
. 
I am the member of the Health and Safety team, allocated to review the steps you 
intend to take to promote the Public Safety Licensing Objective. 
 
Upon review of the premises licensing application, it is noted that a very limited 
information is provided on how the Public Safety objectives will be met. 
 
The following further information will be required to ascertain how public safety 
objectives will be achieved: 
 

1) As your premises is requesting to extend the time for live music, I would like 
to make sure this arrangement is safe and that you have all necessary 
measures in place to prevent fire and evacuate people safely if fire does 
occur. Please provide a copy of your Fire Risk Assessment. 

2) Disabled access and evacuation – what is your policy regarding admittance 
for disabled customers? How are you going to assure their safety at the 
premises?  

Page 48



3) Please confirm if checks are carried out on equipment at specified intervals, 
e.g. gas safety checks and Portable Appliance Testing.  

4) Standards to be maintained, e.g. Fixed electrical installations to comply with 
British Standards; Please provide a copy of a satisfactory/up to date fixed 
electrical wiring record for your premises. 

5) Please advise on measures to protect against overcrowding. 
 

 
In the in the meantime I would refer you to our licensing policy, available on our 
website under this link Statement of Licensing Policy 2017 - 2022.doc (lbhf.gov.uk), 
especially pages 17-18, 26-27 and 30 which are relevant to public safety. Please 
familiarise yourself with it and elaborate on the specific measures which you are 
going to take to meet this objective. Please provide me with a response by 
Wednesday, 30 March 2022. 
 
Thank you in advance of your co-operation. 
 
Sincerely. 
 
Shaafiek Christian 
Environmental Health Practitioner 
Health and Safety 
Hammersmith and Fulham Council 
 

Page 49

https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/sites/default/files/section_attachments/statement_of_licensing_policy_2017_-_2022.pdf


1. Temporary Event Notice - 2021/01218/LATEMP 
The premises has an existing licence (2020/00507/LAPR) and wishes to extend the 
hours of the sale of alcohol to cover a birthday party. 
 
Licensable activities sought: 
The sale of alcohol on the premises only for no more than 60 people 
Days and times sought: 
Saturday 30 October 2021 between the hours of 00:00 to 02:00. 
 
 

2. Temporary Event Notice - 2021/01477/LATEMP 
The premises has an existing licence (2020/00507/LAPR) and the applicant wishes 
to extend the permitted hours for the sale of alcohol to cover a birthday party. 
 
Licensable activities sought: 
The sale of alcohol on the premises only for no more than 60 people. 
Days and times sought:  
Saturday 11 December 2021 between the hours of 00:00 to 02:00 
 
 

3. Temporary Event Notice - 2022/00169/LATEMP 
The premises has an existing licence (2020/00507/LAPR) and the applicant wishes 
to extend the hours for the sale of alcohol and regulated entertainment for a birthday 
party. 
 
Licensable activities sought: 
The sale of alcohol on the premises only and the provision of regulated 
entertainment for no more than 50 people. 
 
Days and times sought: 
The sale of alcohol on the premises only 
Friday 11 March 2022 to Saturday 12 March 2022 between the hours of 22:00 to 
02:00. 
 
The provision of regulated entertainment 
Friday 11 March 2022 to Saturday 12 March 2022 between the hours of 22:00 to 
00:00. 
 
 

4. Late Temporary Event Notice - 2022/00303/LATEML 
The premises has an existing licence (2020/00507/LAPR) and the applicant wishes 
to extend the hours for the live music at an open mic event. 
 
Licensable activities sought: 
The performance of live music indoors only for no more than 60 people. 
 
Days and times sought: 
Thursday 17 March 2022 between the hours of 22:00 to 23:30. 
 
  

Page 50



5. Late Temporary Event Notice - 2022/00393/LATEML 
The premises has an existing licence (2020/00507/LAPR) and the applicant wishes 
to extend the hours for the regulated entertainment and the sale of alcohol. 
 
Licensable activities sought: 
The sale of alcohol on the premises only and the provision of regulated 
entertainment for no more than 50 people. 
 
Days and times sought: 
The provision of regulated entertainment 
Thursday 24th March 2022 between the hours of 22:00 to 23:30. 
 
The sale of alcohol on the premises only 
Friday 25th March 2022 between the hours of 00:00 to 02:00. 
 
 

6. Temporary Event Notice - 2022/00492/LATEMP 
The premises has an existing licence (2020/00507/LAPR) and the applicant wishes 
to extend the hours for the sale of alcohol to cover a birthday party. 
 
Licensable activities sought: 
The sale of alcohol on the premises only for no more than 70 people. 
 
Days and times sought: 
Saturday 7th May 2022 between the hours of 00:00 to 02:00. 
 
 

7. Temporary Event Notice - 2022/00493/LATEMP 
The premises has an existing licence (2020/00507/LAPR) and the applicant wishes 
to extend the hours for the sale of alcohol and regulated entertainment to cover a 
birthday party. 
 
Licensable activities sought: 
The sale of alcohol on the premises only and the provision of regulated 
entertainment for no more than 60 people. 
 
Days and times sought: 
The sale of alcohol on the premises only 
Thursday 14th April 2022 to Friday 15th April 2022 between the hours of 22:00 to 
02:00 
 
The provision of regulated entertainment 
Thursday 14th April 2022 between the hours of 22:00 to 23:30 

Page 51


	Agenda
	3 Bloom, 399 Fulham Palace Road, London SW6 6TA
	Appendix 1 - Current Licence
	Appendix 1a - Plan
	Appendix 2 - Variation Application
	Appendix 2a - Comments from Applicant
	Appendix 3 - Map showing location
	Appendix 3a- Neighbouring premises
	Appendix 4 - Cllr rep
	Appendix 5 - Resident rep
	Appendix 6 - Comments from H&S
	Appendix 7 - TENs




